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Fax (318, 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Matt Talbert, Mayor 
Members of the Board of Alderman 
Town of Sterlington, Louisiana 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Sterlington, 
Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of December 31, 2021, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors' report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standar& will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a suhstantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judeement made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control rele% ant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit. sigiificant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Inforrnation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-10 and 43-47 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
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financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation, benefits, and other 
payments to the agency head, Schedule of Compensation Paid to Council Members and 
Collecting/Disbursing Entity Schedule as Required by Act 87, are presented for the purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the agency head, Schedule of 
Compensation Paid to Council Members, and Collecting/Disbursing Entity Schedule as Required by Act 
87, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic fmancial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governrnent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 
2024, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governrnent Auditing Standards in considering the 
Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

West Monroe, Louisiana 
arwir--tv, CAP4-e-) 

September 30, 2024 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (PART A) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



TOWN OF STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

As management of the Town of Sterlington, we offer readers of the financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the fmancial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. 
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the accompanying 
basic financial statements. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Town's financial 
performance as a whole 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the Town of Sterlington exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year by S4.303,199 (net position). Of this amount, $5,461.154 represented net 
investment in capital assets, $268,241 was restricted for public works, $271,567 was 
restricted for debt service, and $179,366 was restricted for economic development. The 
atnount of ($1,877,129) is available for spending at the eovemment's discretion 
(unrestricted net positiwn. 

• The eovemment's total net position increased by $1,769,212. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Sterlington's Governrnental Funds 
reported an ending fund balance of $2,349.236, an increase of $1.497,756 in comparison 
with the prior year. The amount of S1,302,671 is availahle for spending at the 
government's discretion (unassigned jimd balance). 

• The Town of Sterlington's total debt decreased by approximately $886,000 during the 
current fiscal year. During 2021, the Town didn't issue any new debt. 

• The beginning net position were restated on the financials mainly for debt that overstated 
on the prior year financial statements as well as recording a right of use asset and liability 
with the application of GASB 87 for leases. Please see note 19 for additional information. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Sterlington's 
basic financial statements. The Town of Sterlington's basic financial statements are comprised of 
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) 
notes to the financial statetnents. This report also contains other suppletnentary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide tinancial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Sterlington's finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
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The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Sterlington's assets and 
liabilities. with the difference between the two reponed as net position. Over time. increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Town of Sterlington is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs. regardless of the timing of related cash tlows. 
Thus. revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Sterlington 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governinental activities) 
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town of 
Sterlineton include general government, public safety, and public works. The business-type 
activity of the Town of Sterlington includes a sewer system. 

The government-wide tinancial statements can be found on pages 11 and 12 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town 
of sterlington. like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with tinance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of 
Sterlington can be divided into two categories. governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However. unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
tenn inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
availahle at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
governinent's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements. it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
infbrmation presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so. readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental ft.ind 
statement of revenues, expenditures. and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between the eovernmental funds and governmental activities. 

The Town of Sterlington maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund_ Road Construction 
and Maintenance Fund, Recreation Sales Tax Fund, and Sports Complex Capital Project Fund. all 
of which are considered to be major funds. The Capital Projects Fund is presented as a nonmajor 
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funds in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances as "Aggregate Remaining Funds." 

The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 13 through 16 of this report. 
The Town of Sterlington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Road 
Construction and Maintenance Fund, Sports Complex Sales Tax Fund, ARPA Fund, Economic 
Development Fund and the Sports Complex Fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been 
provided on pages 43 through 47 to demonstrate compliance with the budgets. 

Proprietary funds. The Town of Sterlington maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17 through 20 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements begin on page 21 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town of 
Sterlington's compliance with budgets for its major fund. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the Town of Sterlington, assets exceeded liabilities by $4,303,199 at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 

The largest amount ($5,461,154) of the Town of Sterlington's net position reflects its investment 
in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town of Sterlington uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the Town of Sterlington's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, 
it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Town of Sterlington 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

 

Total 
2020 2021 2020 

 

2021 2020 2021 

Current and other assets $ 966,499 $ 2,369,924 $ 634,057 $ 472,606 $ 1,600,556 $ 2,842,530 
Capital assets 12,873,230 12,948,066 4,436,730 

 

4,242,745 17,309,816 17,190,811 

Total assets 13,839,729 15,317,990 5,070,787 

 

4,715,351 18,910,372 20,033,341 
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Deferred outflows of resources 

   

28.753 

 

'3.959 28,753 

 

'3.959 

['mem and other liabilities 491.073 528,447 

 

774.424 

 

(i70,(i27 1,265,497 

 

1.199.074 

Long-terni liabilities 7,t09,9110 7.051.384 

 

8.097.702 

 

7.503.643 15,127.602 

 

14.555,027 

Total liabilities .7,57,0.973 7.5'9.83 

 

8.872.126 

 

8.r4.270 16,393,099 

 

15.754,101 

Net Assets 

         

Net investment in capital assets 5.573.330 5.461.154 

 

- 

  

5.573.330 

 

5.461.154 

Resit icted 135.820 503,663 

 

322 619 

 

215,511 458,439 

 

719,174 
Unrestricted 609,607 1,773,342 

 

(4.095.204) 

 

r 3,(,50.4 7 1 ) t 3,-185,597) 

 

(I.5"7.120 ) 

Total net position $ 6.318.757 $ 7.738.159 ¶ 

 

¶ (3,434,960) $ 2.546.172 ¶ -1.303.199 

     

=I= 

    

In 2021. total net position of the Town increased by $1.769,212. The changes in net position are 
discussed later in this MD&A. 

The results of this year's operations for the primary governinent as a whole are reported in the 
Statement of Activities as follows: 

Toss•n of Stern ngton 

Condensed Statement of Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31. 21121 and 20211 

Revenues 

Progratn Revenues 

Got trumenta1 

 

Ehbuies,,-Type Activirie% 

 

Toral 

 

2020 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

 

2021 

       

Chaiges Foi Seivices $ 387,541 ¶ 279,970 $ 1.038.205 $ 1.103.798 S 1,425,746 ¶ 1,383,768 

Operatuip Giants And Conuibutious 32.641 

 

5O,189 

  

32.641 

 

561,189 

Capital Grants .And Contributions 

        

General Revenues 

        

Property Taxes 195,0,11 

 

209,746 

  

195.041 

 

209,746 

Sales Taxes 1.330,765 

 

2.038,861 

 

- 1.330,7M 

 

2,038,861 

Other Cieneral Revenues 259.057 

 

218,836 2 76 151 259,333 

 

218,987 

Transfeis 135.319 

 

k70.724) (135,320) 70,724 (,1) 

  

Total Revenues '.340.364 

 

3.237.875 903.16 I 1.174.673 3,243,525 

 

4.412.551 

Expenses 

        

General Goveruntent 949,109 

 

£+H2.212 

  

949,109 

 

882.212 

Public Safety 214,269 

 

207,076 

  

214.269 

 

207,076 

Public Winks 74.346 

 

83,986 

  

74.346 

 

83,986 

Culture And Recreation 119,938 

 

149,200 - - 119.938 

 

149,200 

Interest On Long-Term Debt 608,107 

 

433,418 326,817 2-18.142 934.924 

 

681,560 

Sewer 

  

- 564,214 639.305 564.214 

 

639,305 

Total Expenses 1,965,769 

 

1.755,892 591.031 887.447 2.856,800 

 

',643.339 

Increase (Decrease) In Net Position $ 174,595 ¶ 1,481,986 $ 12.130 $ 287.226 $ 386.725 ¶ 1,769,212 



Governmental Activitier 

Governmental activities increased the Town of Sterlington's net position by $1,481.986. Key 
elements of the changes in net position are as follows: 

Expenses are classified by functionsfprograms. General government expenses accounted for 
$882,212 in 2021. Public safety accounted for S207.076 while public works accounted for S83.986 
for fiscal 2021. Culture and recreation accounted for $149,200 in 2021. Interest on long-term debt 
accminted for $433,418 in 2021. 

The related program revenues for fiscal 2021 directly related to these expenses totaled $841,159 
which resulted in net program expenses of S914.733. The remaining balance of expenses 
represents the cost to the taxpayers. The costs of governmental activities exceeding restricted state 
grants are paid primarily from the following sources: 

• Sales tax revenues are the largest and most significant source of revenue for the Town of 
Sterlington, providing approximately $2.038,861 of revenues, an increase of $708.096 
(53%) as compared to 2020. Of the $2,038.861, S1,018,115 is allocated to the General 
Fund, $338,544 to the Road Construction and Maintenance Fund. $338.710 to the 
Recreation Sales Tax Fund, and $343,492 to the Economic Development District Fund. 

• Ad valorem taxes are the next largest revenue source to the Town. generating $209.746, an 
increase of $14,705 (7.5%) in General Fund revenue. 

• Fines and forfeitures of $120,846. a decrease of $4.512 (4%) from 2020's 5125,358 
recognized by the Town. 

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities (Consolidated Sewer District) increased the 
Town of Sterlineton's net position by approximately $287.226. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town of Sterlington uses fund accountine. to ensure and demonctrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

The focus of the Town of Sterlington's governmental funds is to provide infonnation on near-tenn 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the Town of Sterlington's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 



General Fund, Road Construction and Maintenance Fund, Economic Development District 
Fund and Recreation Sales Tax Budgetary Highlights 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39. Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government 
Budget Act (LSA- R.S 39:1301 et seq ), the Town of Sterlington must adopt a budget for the 
General Fund and all Special Revenue funds prior to December 31. The original budget for the 
Town was done hy the fiscal administrator and was amended on December 28, 2021. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The Town of Sterlington's investment in capital assets (including right of use 
assets) for its governmental and business type activities as of December 31, 2021, amounts to 
$17,190,811 (net of accumulated depreciation), which decreased by approximately $119,149 over 
the prior year due primarily to depreciation and amortization expense in the current year of 
$516,963. 

The $17.2 million investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings 
and system improvements, right of use assets and machinery and equipment. 

Town of Sterlington Capital Assets 

December 31, 2021 

Land 1.664,517 

Construction In Pro2ress 23.288 

Building And Improvements 203.916 

Sports Complex And Improvements 10.516.255 

Land Improvements 16'.850 

Vehicles And Equipment 1.633,184 

Fire Protection System 581,981 

Drainage 475,472 

Streets 1,487,444 

Right of Use Asset 840,000 

Sewer System 7.598.982 

Total 25.187,889 

Less: Accu. Deprec. and Amort 

Total Capital Assets 

( 7,997,078)  

17,190.811   

As of December 31, 2021. the Town of Sterlington's outstanding long-term debt 01'1;15.573.105 
consists of the following. 
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Town of Sterlington Long-term Obligations 

December 31, 2021 

Lone-term 
Obl igat ions 

Balance 
December 31, 2021 

Revenue bonds 14,977.274 

Lease Liability 551,918 

Deferred discount (5.637) 

Compensated absences 49.559 

 

15,573.114 

During fiscal year 2021. the Town did not issue any additional debt. 

Requests for Information 

This tinancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Sterlington's 
finances for all of those with an interest in the government's tinances. Questions concerning any 
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should 
be addressed to the Town Clerk, 503 Highway 2. Sterlington, Louisiana 71280. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE F ANCIAL STATEMENTS 



TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
DECENIBER 31, 2021  

Assets 

Governrnental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

   

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,639,183 $ 173,800 $ 1,812,983 
Receivables, Net 435,494 83,/95 518,789 
Due from Other Governments 506 

 

506 
Restricted Cash 815 215,511 216,326 
Restneted Investments 288,946 - 288,946 
Prepaid Expenses 4,980 

 

4.980 
Notes Receix able, Net - 

  

Right of Use Asset, Net 483,000 

 

483,000 
Capital Assets, Net: 12.465,066 4.242.745 16,707.811 

otal Assets 15.317.990 4,715,351 20.033 341 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

    

)3,959 '3,959 

Liabilities 

   

Accounts Payable 14,684 8,631 '3,315 
Accrued Liabilities 78,235 28,994 107,229 
Customer Deposits 

 

100,002 100,002 

Current Portion of Lease Liability 81,436 

 

81,436 
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations 354,092 533,000 887,092 
Non-Current Portion of Lease Liability 470,482 

 

470,482 

Non-Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations 6,580,902 7,503,643 14.084,545 
Total Liabilities 7,579,831 8,174,270 15.754,101 

Net Position 

   

Net Investment in Capital Assets 5.461,154 

 

5,461,154 

Restricted for Public Works 268,241 

 

268,241 
Restricted for Debt Service 56,056 215,511 271.567 
Restricted for Economic Development 179,366 

 

179.366 

Unrestricted 1,773,342 (3.65(t.471) (1,877,129) 
Total Net Position $ 7,738.159 S (3,434,960) 5 4.303 199 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
FOR .ITIE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Function/Program Activities 
Government Activities: 

Lxpenses 

 

Program Revenues 

 

Charges for 
Sen ices 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

    

General Government $ 882,212 $ 157,641 $ 561,189 $ 
Public Safety 207,076 120.846 

  

Highways and Streets 83.986 

   

C'ultural and Recreation 149,200 1.483 

  

Interest on Long-Terrn Debt 433,418 

   

Total Governmental Activities 755.892 279,970 561.189 

 

Business-Type Activities: 

    

Consolidated Sewer District 639,305 1,103.798 

  

lnterest on Long-Tenn Debt 248.142 

   

Total Business-Type Activities 887,447 1.103,798 

  

Total Government $ 2.643.339 $ 1.383,768 $ 56L 189 $ 

General Revenues: 

Taxes 

Property Taxes 

Sales Taxes 

Franchise Taxes 

In% estment Earnings 

Transfers 

Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

Changes in Net PoNition  

Net Pwition - Beainning (ReAatedl 

Net Plisitilin - Ending 



Net (Expense) Revenues and 

Changes in Net Position 
Primary Government 

Goverfunental Business-Type 
Activities Activities (qa1 

S (163.382) S 
(86,230) 
(83,986) 

(147.717) 
(433,418) 

$ (163,382) 
(86,230) 
(83.986) 

(147,717) 
(433.418) 

(914,733) 

 

464,493 
(248.142)  

M4.733) 

464,493 
(248A42)      

216,351 216,351 

(914.733) 216.351 (698.382) 

209,746 

/,038.861 

151.407 

2.906 

(70.724) 

6-1.523 

209,746 

2,038,861 

151.407 

3.057 

64,5/3 

151 

70.724 

2,396.719 

1,481.986 

6.256.173  

70,875 2,467,594 

1872/6 1.769.212 

(3.722.186) /.533,987 

S 7.738.159 S (3,434.960) $ 4.303.199 

The accompanying notes are an intectral part of this financial statements. 
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TON% N OF sTERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DEC EN1BER 31. 2021  

Assets 

  

Major Funds 

  

Total 
Governmental 

Fluids 
General 

Funil 

 

Spethil Revenue Funds 

 

Capital Protects 
Road 

Ciinstniction 
and Mairiteriance ARPA 

Re...Nation 
Sales Tax 

Ecouoilli, 
Developineiit 

Distritt 
Sports 

Complex 

        

Mil CaSh Eli S 793.894 $ 127.888 $ 542.902 $ 47.226 S 123.97' S 3.301 5 1.639.183 
Receivables 

        

Ail Valotem Taxes - Net 195.969 

      

195,969 
Sales Taxes 114.992 44.652 

 

8.830 55.394 

  

223.868 

 

15.657 

      

15.657 
Cash - Resincteil 

     

815 

 

815 
Investments - Restritted 288.946 

      

288.944; 
Piepaill Expenses 4.980 

      

4.980 
Due from Other Governments 506 

      

506 
Due from Other Funds 

 

96.145 

   

1,447 

 

97.592 
Total Assets 1.414.944 268.685 542.902 56.056 179.366 5.563 

 

2.467 516 

Liabilities 

        

Atcoimts Payable 8.6' - 111 

   

5.563 

 

14.684 
Accrued Expenses 6.004 

      

6 004 

Due to Orhet Funds 97.5'02 

      

97.592 
Total Liabilities 112.2 73 I I 

   

5.563 

 

118,280 

Fund Balances 

        

Resti fed 

 

268.241 )( .N6.1156 1 79.366 

  

1.046.565 
Unassigned (Deficit ; 1. 102.e,7 1 

      

1.3142,671 

Total Fund BalanCes 1.302.6- 1 268.241 

 

c6.056 179.366 

  

2.349.234; 

Total Liabilities and 

's 1 11 ,1 t S 26k 4,8s 

 

c(,  056 1 79. r", , 5.cr.3 \ 2.467 .s und Balances  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of- this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

RE( ONC ILI ATION OF GOVERNN>ENTAL  
Ft ND BALANCE TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

DE( EMBER 31, 2021  

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 2,349,236 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 

statement of net position are different because. 

C'apital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and therefore are not reported 

in the funds. 

Governmental Capital Assets 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Right of Use Asset 

15,896,071 

(3,431,005) 
840,i)00 

 

Accumulated Amortization (357,000) 12,948,066 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable. are not due 

and payable in the current period and therefore are not 

reported in the govenunental funds. 

  

Compensated Absences (49,559) 

 

Lease Liability (551,918) 

 

Accrued Interest on Bonds (22,672) 

 

Bonds Payable (6,934,994) (7,559,143) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

 

$ 7,738,159 

The accompain ing notes are an integral part of this tinancial statentents. 
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TOWN OF STERLLNGTON 
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FEND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Rot-tines 

    

Mato! Fund,  

   

Total 
Ouxerninental 

Fund. Genetal Fund 

   

s3pecial RC\ cline FLILIds 

 

C inn Protects 
Road 

Construction 
and Maintenance 

 

ARPA 
Recreation 
Sale: Tax 

Ewuninic 
De% elopineul 

Encino 

 

S pOrt 

oniplex 

          

Ptoperry Taxes $ 209.746 S 

 

¶ - S S 

   

S 209.746 
Sales Taxes l.u18.1l5 

 

3.18,s44 

  

139..71u )4.1,4o,  

  

2.038.861 
Framhise Titxes 151.4O 

 

- 

      

I51.4u7 

licenses and Permits 151.691 

 

3.)35r) 

      

155.541 

Intergovenuneiiial IS.2.tr 

 

- 

 

542.9(12 

    

561.189 
Fees - 

       

1.4X3 1.483 

Charges for Services 2.10U 

        

2,10u 

Fines and Forfeitures 120.846 

        

120.846 
Use ief Money arid Property 2.8is4 

 

12 

  

lu 

   

2.906 

Miscellaneous 4.45o 

       

60 073 64,523 

Total Revenues 1.0-0.526 

 

3-12.406 

 

542..in2 33x,720 343.492 

 

6 l.556 3.30S,elf 

F wen di tures 
437.3.046 

        

483.071 ()curial Government 
Public Safety 207.076 

        

20- .06 
Public Works 0.264 

 

77.722 

      

g..3.906 
Culture and Reiscabon - 

       

65 2U1 65.201 
Capital Outlay 24.799 

        

24.790 
Debi ServiLe 

         

- 
Pnncipal Payments l6ti.u00 

 

20.000 

  

o3..11r,./ 121.6% 

 

77.665 442.571 
Interest and Other 39,492 

 

3.i. i 6 

  

21'0.5(15 42.52o 

 

11'.673 43.3.41g. 

Total Expenditures v2t),6-7 

 

l _inym, 

  

7.6.iya,j lt1-1.12t, 

 

2o0.530 1.740.122 

Fxcess (Deficiency) of Res roues 

          

(Aer FxrienditureN -5S,S4.) 

 

21 

 

542 nU2 -4.)O0 "9 106 

 

,1•1FGbtt 1 568.4Su 

Other Financing 'sources and (t Nest 

          

Trawders hi 62.4i - 

    

- 

  

239.413 301.830 
Transfers Out i2 - 4.r.S5) 

    

(35.452) (62 417) 

  

(372.5541 
Total Ollie( Financing (212.26!7, ) 

    

35.4521 (62 4171 

 

239 413 (70,724) 

'Net C hang,- in I und BalalICT 540.5131 

 

211.516 

 

542.902 39,378 116.949 

 

4u.430 1.497.756 

fund Balance - Beginning '5o,(19(1 

 

56 725 

  

16.678 62.417 

 

(4u.430) 01.40 

FUND FIALANt. F. ENDINt.;  S I 302/.- 

 

26!!i.241 I 542 nu2 $ 56.U56 1 79 366 \ - S 2 349.236 

The actxmlipanying notes ale an integral part of tins financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AM) CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GO\ ERNMENTAL FUNDS  

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1.497,756 

Amounts reported fiff governmental activities in 
the statement qf at-twines are difierent because. 

Gox ernment funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 

Howex er, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital Outlay - Net 
Depreciation expense 
Amortization expense 

24,799 
(432,963) 

(84,000) (492,164)    

The issuance of long-term debt provides current fmancials 
resources to governmental fund.s, while the repayments of 
the principal of a long-term debt consumes the current financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transactions, however, 
has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report 
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar 
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The 
detail of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt 
and related items is as follows: 

Principal Payments 441,571 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported as expenditures in governmental hands. 

Decrease in Compensated Absences 3,866 
Decrease in Accrued lnterest 79:957 33,8, 3 

    

Change in Net Position in Governmental Activities $ 1.481,986 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF NTT POSITION  

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE F[tNI) 
UTILITY F[t1D  

DECEMBER 31, 2021  

ASSETS 

Current Assets  

CAI and Cash Equivalents 

Accounts Receivable. Net 

Cash and Cask Equivalents Restiicted 

Total Current Assets 

$ 173.800 
[O,195 

215,511 

472.606 

Non-Current Assets  

Notes Receivable. Net  

Capital Assets:  

Land and Land Impiovements 74,225 

Water Reservoir and Treatment Plant 7.54)8.982 

Eqt I I pinent 778,611 
Less: Accumulated Depiecial tun (4,209.073) 

Total C:apital Assets 4,242,745 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Deferred Out flols s of Resources 

Current Liabilities (Payable from ('urrent Assets)  

Accmuits Payable 

Customer Deposits 

Compensated Absences 

Total Current Liabilities (Payable from Current Assets) 

Current Liabilities (Pavabie from Restricted Assets) 

Accrued interest on Revenue Bonds 
Cm rent Portion of Long-Tenn Debt 

Tutal Current Liabilities (Payable froni Restricted Assets) 

4,715,351 

S 631 

10000' 

28,994 

533.000 

561.994 

Tolal Current Liabilities 670,627 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Bonds and Notes Payable 7.5(13.613 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,174,270 

Net Position  
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt 
Restricted for Debt Service 215.5 1 I 
Unrestricted 3m50.471') 

Total Net Position $ (3.134 901) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON 
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE HIND 
UTILITY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Operating Revenues 

 

User Fees 1,102,659 
Other Operating Revenues 1,139 

Total Operating Revenues 1,103,798 

Operatino Expenses 

 

Depreciation and Amortization 353,567 
Insurance 8,108 
Maintenance and Repairs 93,728 
Material and Supplies 58,611 
Office Supplies 6,867 
Other Operating Expenses 14,063 
Professional Fees 5,889 
Salaries and Related Benefits 50,783 
Utilities and Communications 40,482 

Total Operating Expenses 63/,09K 

Net Operating Income (Loss) 471,700 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

 

Interest Earnings 151 
Amortization Expense (7,2(17) 
Interest Expense (248,142) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (255,198) 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 216,502 

Transfers In (Out) 7(►,724 

Change in Net Position 287,226 

Total Net Position. BeRinning ReNtated) O,722,186) 

Total Net Position. Ending (3,434,960) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
UTILITY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC:EMBER 31, 2021  

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

 

Receipts from Customers $ 1,113,797 
Payments to Suppliers (257,652) 
Payments to Employers and Employee Benefits (50,783) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 805,362 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 

 

Customer Deposits (22,912) 
Transfer to Other Funds 70,724 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noneapital Fmancing Activities 47,812 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing 

 

Activities 

 

Purchase of Capital Assets (153,981) 
Principal Paid on Debt (518,000) 
Decrease in Accrued Interest (31,773) 
Interest Paid (255,349) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and and Related Financing Activities (959,103) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

 

Loans to Contractors (Net) 
Interest Earned on Investments 151 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 151 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (105,778) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 495,089 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 389.311 

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 173,800 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 215,511 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 389,311 

Continued on ncxt page. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Reconciliation uf Operating Income (Loss)  
to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net Operating Income (Loss) 471.700 

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Used by Operatim Activities 
Depreciation 353,567 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 9,999 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payahle (29,904) 
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Accounts S 805,362 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECENLBER 31, 2921  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying financial staternents include all funds of the Town of Sterlington, Louisiana 
(the Town). The accompanying financial staternents of the Town have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard- setting body for establishing go% ernmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. 

The Town consists of an executive branch of government headed by a mayor and a legislative 
branch of governtnent consisting of five aldermen The Town's major operations include police 
protection, street and drainage maintenance, wastewater collection and treatment, and 
administrative services 

As the governing authority for the municipality, the Town is the reporting entity for the 
municipality. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the 
Town), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and 
(c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
Town are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be 
misleading or incornplete. 

GASB Statement Number 61, The Financial Reporting £ntitl•: Omnihns-An Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34. establishes criteria for determining which component units should 
be considered part of the Town for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including 
a potential cornponent unit within the reporting entity is accountability. These criteria include: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body andthe ability of the Town 
to impose its will on that organization and:or the potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Town. 

2. Organizations for which the Town does not appoint a 1, oting rnajority but are fiscally 
dependent on the Town. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading 
if data of the organization is not included because of the nature and signiticance of the 
relationship. 

Based on tiw foregoing criteria, the financial staternents of the Sterhngton Consolidated 
Sewerage District (a proprietary fund type - enterprise fund - the District) have been included 
in this report using a blended presentation because the District's accounting records are maintained 
by the Town and the District's Board of Commissioners include the Mayor and two Alderrnen. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2921  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The Town's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements on all activities 
of the government and the fund financial statements. The statements are prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applied to governmental units and promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Codification of Governmental Accounting und Financial Reporting 
Standards Both the entity-wide tinancial statements and the proprietary fund financial 
statements tbllow the guidance included in GASB Statement No 62-Codificanon gl Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained In Pre-November 30, 1989, FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The go‘ernment-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities for all activities of the government. As a general rule, the effect of 
interfund activitv has been removed from these statements. The government-wide presentation 
focuses primarily on the sustamability of the Town as an entity and the change in aggregate 
financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 

Governmental Activities represent programs which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues 

Business-type Activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties for 
goods and services. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
fimction or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services. or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contnbutions that are 
restncted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes 
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Certain activitv occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund 
tinancial statements. these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in out. While 
reported m fimd financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the 
government-wide financial statements. Transfershetween the fnnds included in governmental 
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental 
activities column. Similarly. balances between the funds included in business-type activities 
are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities 
column. 



TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2921  

Note 1 - Sunimar of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

Fuud Financial Statements 

The Town uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of operations. Fund 
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by 
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fiand is a separate 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund 
equity. revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate 

The emphasis of ftmd repornng is on the major fnnd levd in either the governmental or business-
type categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are summarized into a single 
column in the basic tinancial statements. 

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary. and fiduciary Each category, 
in turn, is divided into separate "fimd types". Governmental fimds are used to account for a 
government's general activities, where the focus of attention is on the provision of services to 
the public as opposed to proprietary fimds where the focus of attention is on recovering the cost 
of proN tiling services to the public or other agencies through service charges or user fees. 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held for others. The Town's current operations 
require the use of the governmental and proprietary categories. The fund types used by the 
Town are described as follows: 

Governmental activities presented as Governmental Funds in the fund financial statements. 

Major Fund.s: 
General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It isused to account 
for all financial resources of the Town except for those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Road Construction Maintenance - This special revenue fund is used to account for 
resources and activities associated with proceeds from the onehalf of one percent (11.50%) 
sales and use tax. 

Recreation Sales Tax - This special revenue fund is used to account for resources and 
activities associated with the proceeds from the one half of one percent t 0.50%) sales and use 
tax related to recreational activities. 

Sports Complex - The capital project fund is used to account for the constniction of a 
recreational sports complex and its related debt funding and repayments. 

Non-Major Funds. 
Capital Projects - This fund is used to account for resources and activities associated with 
capital outlay for General Government and some Sewer projects. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2921  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Basis of Preseutation (continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

Business-type activities presented as Enterprise Funds m the fund financial statements: 

Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are tinanced or operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing eoods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or reco‘ered primarily through user charges. or (b) where 
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of rel, enue earned, expenses 
incurred, and'ornet income is appropriate for capital maintenance, puhlic policy. management 
control, accountability or other purposes. Capital projects for the Enterprise fund that use part or 
all of general government resources to fund the capital project isnormally accounted for in a 
Capital Projects fund. If the Enterprise fund is financing a portion of the cost, then a transfer is 
made from the Enterpnse fund to the Capital Projects fund for the Enterpnse fund's portion of the 
cost. At the end of each year, the Enterprise fund recognizes a capital contribution for the amount 
of Construction in Progress for that year. The Enterprise fund depreciates the asset when it is 
complete and goes in production. The Enterprise fund is presented in the business-type 
activities column in government-wide financial statements and is considered a major fund in the 
Enterprise Fund statements. 

Governmental Fulids 

Revowes: 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method. revenues are 
recoglized when susceptible to accntal (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collectihle within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-
end. 

The Sheriff of Ouachita Parish, as provided hy state law, bills and collects property taxes on 
behalf of the Town using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Ouachita Parish. 
Billed taxes become delinquent on January I of the year following the year in which the taxes 
are due. 

Sales taxes are recognized as revenue when in the hands of the vendor. 

Interest earnings on time deposits are recognized as revenue when the time deposits have matured 
and interest is available. Substantially all other revenues are recognized when actually received 
by the Town. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2921  

Note 1 - Sunimar, of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

Expendifures: 
Expenditures in the governmental funds are generally recognized under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting when the liability is incurred except for unmatured interest on long-term 
debt which is recognized when due. and certainclaims and judgments which are recognized 
when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availahle for use, it is the Town's policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Proprienny Fluids 

The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accnial method of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when they are earned. and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

Revenues: 

The Town distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. The 
principle operating revenues are charges to customers for services. The Town also recognizes as 
operating revenues charges to customers for connecting to the sewer system. 

Expenses: 

Operating expenses consist of amounts paid for wages and related benefits, contractual 
services, supplies used, equipment and facility maintenance and operations, depreciation, and 
other items directly or indirectly required for the provision of services. All expenses not 
meeting the previously mentioned definitions are reported as nonoperating expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the hudgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements 

1. The proposed budget is submitted to the Board of Aldermen in December. Notice of the 
location and availability of the proposed budget for public inspection and the date of the 
public hearing to be conducted on the budget is then advertised in the official journal of 
the Town. 



TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C:. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued) 

After the public hearing, the budget is adopted by passing an ordinance 
approving the budget at the selected December board ineeting. 

3. Budgetary amendments in‘ olving the transfer of funds from one 
department, program or function to another or involving increases in 
expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated require the 
approval of the Board of Aldermen. 

4. All legally adopted budgets of the Town are adopted on a basis consistent with 
GAAP. Encumbrance accounting is not used by the Town. 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/I und 
Equity 

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Under state law. the Town may deposit in demand deposits, money market accounts, or time 
deposits with state hanks organized under Louisiana law or national banks having their 
principal offices in Louisiana. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents 
include all highly liquid investments( including restricted assets) with a maturity date of 
three months or less when purchased. Deposits with maturity dates greater than three months 
are classified as investments. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Short term cash loans between funds are considered temporary in nature. Theseamounts are 
reported as "due from!due to other funds " Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances." 

Capita! Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, building, other improvements, machinery and equipment, 
vehicles, furniture and fixtures. are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 

As permitted by GASB Statement No 34, the Town has elected not to report infrastructure 
assets retroactively but began accountine for them prospectively in the year ended December 
31. 2010. The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets associated with 
a particular fund is determined by the fund's measurement fucus. 
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Note 1 - Surnmar of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I). Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund 
Equity (continued) 

All purchased capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and at 
estimated cost where historical records are not available. The Town considers assets with an 
individual cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful life of one year or more a capital 
asset. Donated fixed assets are valued at fair market value at the date of the gift. Major 
additions are capitalized while maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the life 
of the respective assets are charged to expense 

Capital assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line 
method. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings 10 to 30 years 
Vehicles and equipment 3 to l (1 years 
Fire protection system 50 years 
Sewer systems 20 to 40 years 
Infra struct ure 20 years 

Long-Term Liabilities 

In the government-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary fund type financial 
statements, long-term debt and compensated absences are reported as liabilities. Bond issuance 
costs are reported as expenses in the year of debt issuance. Bonded debt premiums, discounts, and 
gains (losses) on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method Bonds payable is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Gains 
( losses) on refunding are reported as deferred outflows:inflows of resources. 

Bad Debts 

The Town uses the allowance method for recording bad debts associated with advalorem 
taxes, customer utility accounts receivable, and notes receivable. As of December 31, 2021, 
an allowance of $2,349 was recorded for uncollectible ad valorem taxes receivable deemed 
uncollectible. Uncollectible amounts for customers' sewer charges are generally not significant. 
Therefore. the direct write-off method of recogrizing bad debts is used. Under this method, the 
receivahle is charged to expense when the account is deemed to be uncollectible, and the result 
is substantially the same as that provided by use of the allowance method 

Fund Equio,  of Fund Financial Statements 

GASB 54 - Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions requires the 
fund balance amounts to be reported within the fund balances cateeories as follows: 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accollming Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund 
Equity (continued) 

Nonspendable - Fund balance that is not in spendable form or is legally or contractually 
required to he maintained intact. This category includes items that are not easilv 
comertible to cash such as prepaid expenses. 

Restricted- Portions of fund equity reported in the Fund Financial Statements are restricted 
by local, state or Federal grant regulations for future use and are, therefore, not available tor 
future appropriation or expenditure. 

Committed - Committed fund balances indicate the Town's tentative plans for the use of 
financial resources in a future period. Fund balance commitments are made by Board 
approved resolutions. The Town does not have any such fund balances in the current fiscal 
year. 

Assigned - The Board of Aldermen can assign the General Fund's unassignedfund balance 
as they determine needed for the payrnent of future commitments. The Board of Aldermen 
has not established a formal policy regarding the order of spending fund balances that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned. The Town's informal policy for the spending 
prioritization of fund balances is that restricted would receive top priority followed by 
committed. Assigned balances receive the least priority and would be authorized to be 
spent only ifadequate funds were available If expenditures incurred exceed the amount that 
has been coinmitted or assigned to a specific purpose, amounts unassigned would be 
reduced to eliminate the deficit. The Town does not have any assigned fiind balances in 
the current fiscal year. 

Unassigned - The unassigned portion of fund balance is the amount not in other 
spendable classifications. The Town has not established benchrnarks for unassigned fund 
balance requirements. 

The Board of Aldermen has not established a formal policy regarding the order of spending fimd 
balances that are restricted, conimitted, or assigned. The Town's informal policy for the 
spending prioritization of fund balances is that restricted would receive top priority followed 
by committed. Assigned balances receive the least priority and would be authorized to be spent 
only if adequate funds were available. If expenditures incurred exceed the amount that would 
have been committed or assigned to a specific purpose, amounts unassigned would be reduced to 
eliminate the deficit. 

Net Position 

In the government-wide and proprietary statements, equity is classified as net position and is 
displayed in three components: 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant ACC oll nti ng Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position/Fund 
Equity (continued) 

Net investment in capital assets: Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds. mortgages, notes. or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition. 
construction, or improvement of these assets. 

Restricted net position: Consists of net resources with constraints placed on their use 
hy external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments: or (2) law through constitutional provision or enabline leeislation. 

Unrestricted net position: All other net resources that do not meet the definition of 
"restncted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

The Board of Aldermen has not established a formal policy regarding the order of spending net 
position when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use but informally, 
restricted resources are used tirst and followedby unrestricted if needed Restricted net position 
reported in the Statement of Net Position as restricted for debt service and restricted for 
depreciation and contingency are as a result of externally imposed restrictions by its creditors. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

The statement of financial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and 
(or) deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period( s )and so will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources (expense:expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources represent an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period{ ) and so will not be recognized as an inflow 
of resourcestre‘ awe) until that time. 

All of the Town's deferred outflows of resources on the statement of net positionare a result of 
deferrals concerning bonded debt. A deterred charge on refimdingresults from the difference in 
the carrying value of refimded debt and its reacquisition price. Deterred amount on refunding of 
debt is reported in the deferred inflows or deferred outtlow sections of the statement of position 
and is being amortized over thirteen years beginning in 2014. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions thateffect the reported amounts 
of the assets and liabilities and disclosure of the contingent assets and liabilities the date of the 
financial statements and the reportedamounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting 
period. Actual resultscould differ from those estimates. 
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 

The custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not 
be returned to it. The Town's policy to ensure there is no exposure to this risk is to require each 
financial institution to pledge its own securities to cover any amount in excess of Federal 
Depository Insurance Coverage. Louisiana Revised Statute 39.1229 Imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of 
being notified by the Town that the fiscal agent hank has failed to pay deposited funds upon 
demand Accordingly, the Town did not have custodial risk related to its deposits at December 
31, 2021. 

At December 31, 2021, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances net of overdrafts) 
in the amount of $2,029,309. 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or 
the resulting bank balances) must be secured hy federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of 
securities owned hy the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance inust at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

These securities are held in the name of the pledging tiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial 
bank that is mutually acceptable by both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances) at 
December 31, 2021, are secured as follows. 

Bank Balances $ 2,025,889 

Federal Deposits Insurance S 364,362 
Pledged Secunties (Uneollateralized) 

 

TOTAL S 2,916,984 

Governmental Funds Cash $ 1,639,998 
Enterpnse Funds Cash 389,311 

TOTAL BOOK BALANCES BY FUND TYPE S 2,029,309 

The FDIC issued an updated description of the explanation of savings deposits as follows: (The 
insurance coverage of puhlic unit accounts depends upon the type of deposit and location of the 
insured depository institution. All time and savings deposits owned hy a public unit and held by 
the same official custodian in an insured depository institution within the state in which the public 
unit is located are added together and insured up to $250.000. Separately, all demand deposits 
owned by the puhlic unit and held by the sante official custodian in an insured depository 
institution within the state in which the public unit is located are added together and insured up to 
$250,000. For the purpose of these ndes, the term "savings deposits" includes NOW accounts, 
money market deposit accounts, and other interest-bearing checking accounts.) 
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued) 

El, en though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the 
provision of GASB Statement 3, R.S.39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial 
bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within I() days of being notified by the 
municipality that the tisc,i1 agent has thiled to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the 2overnment will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town had no custodial credit risk 
related to its investments on December 31, 2021. 

Under state law. the Town may invest funds in obligations of the United States. in federally insured 
investments, or in time deposits with slate banks organized under Louisiana law and national 
banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. The forbearance agreement with Argent allows 
a portion of the sales tax collections to he invested until all reserves are met on the debts At 
December 31, 2021. the Town had restricted investments held by Argent of $288.946. 

Note 3 - Receivables/Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are hoth measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers 
revenues to he available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses. and interest associated within the currem fiscal period 
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current 
tiscal period. ()nly the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current tiscal 
period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
government. 

Receivables at December 31. 2021, consist of the following: 

 

Governmental 
Funds 

Proprietary 
Funds Total 

Ad Valorern Taxes (Net) $ 195,969 $ $ 195,969 
Sales Taxes 223,868 

 

223.868 
Accounts Receivable - K;,195 83.295 
Other 15 657 - 15.657 
Total $ 435,494 S 83./95 5 518,789 
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Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the vear ended December 31, 2(t21, is as follows: 

Government Activities: 
Non-Depreciable Assets: 

1/1:-)0'1 
Balance Additions 

 

12 31;2021 
Deletions Balance 

   

Land $ 1,590,292 $ 

 

- $ 1,590,292 
Construction in Process /3 188 

  

/3 188 
Total Non-Depreciable 

Assets 1,613,580 

  

1,613,580 

Depreciable Assets: 

    

Sports Complex 10,516,255 

  

10,516,255 
Buildings 203,916 

  

203,916 
Land Iinprovements 162,850 

  

162,850 
Vehicles and Equipment 829,774 24,79') 

 

854,573 
Fire Protection System 581,981 

  

581,98 l 
Infrastructure: Drainage 475,472 

  

475,472 
Intiastructure: Streets 1,487,444 

  

1,487,444 
Total at Historical Cost 14,257,692 "4,799 

 

14,282,491 

Less Accumulated 

    

Depreciation (2,998,042) (432,903) 

 

(3,431,005 ) 

Government Activities Capital 

    

Assets, Net $ 12,873,230 $ (408,164) 5 S 12.465,066 

Business-Type Activities: 

    

Non-Depreciable Assets: 

    

Land $ 74,225 $ x $ 74 /15 

Depreciable Assets. 

    

Sewer Plant 7,595,482 3,500 

 

7,598,982 
Equipment 622.5'9 156.082 

 

778.611 
Totals at Historical Cost 8,218.011 159.582 

 

8,377,593 

Less Accumulated 

    

Depreciation (3,855.506) (353.567) 

 

(4,209.073) 
Total Depreciable Assets, Net 4.362.505 (193,985) 

 

4,168.520 

Business-Type Activities 
$ 4,436,730 $ (193,985) $ $ 4,242,745 Capital Assets. Net 

     

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021. was charged to functions of the Town 
as follows: 
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Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Government Activities. 

 

General Government $ 6,104 
Public Safetv 22.404 
Public Works 111,487 
Culture and Recreation '9/,968 

Total Depreciation Expense - 
Governmental Activities 432,963 

Business-Type Activities. 
Sewer $ 353,567 

Note 5 - Lung-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

Long-terrn 

()bligations 

Balance 

I I 2021 

 

Additions Deductions 

Balance 

12'31 2021 

Amounts 
Due 

Within 

One Year 

General long-tenn 
obligations 

     

Compensated absences 53,425 $ (3,866) $ 49,554) 49,559 

Long-term debt 7,299,900 

 

(364,906) 6,934,994 354,092 

Subtotal - General 7.353.3/5 

 

(368,772) 6,984.553 403,651 

Enterprise Fund 

     

Compensated absences 

     

Long-term debt 8.560.277 

 

(518,000) 8,042.277 533,000 

Deferred discount (6,441) 

 

804 (5,637) 

 

Subtotal - Enterprise 8,553.836 

 

(517.196) 8.036.640 533,000 

Grand Total $ 15.907.1(i1 $ $ (885,968) $ 15,011.193 936,651 

The Town has the following debt issues: 

On February 27. 2017, the Town issued $4.000,000 of Sales Tax Revenues Bonds, Series 2017. 
These bonds are payable over 20 years with interest at the rate of 3.78% per annum. 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Deht (continued) 

On August 11, 2016, the Town issued 52,000,000, in the aggregate, of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016 in three separate senes: A, B. and C. The Series 2016A bonds were issued in the amount 
of 5500,000 and are payahle o‘ er 20 years. maturing on June 1, 2036. These bonds carry an interest 
rate of 5%. The Series 20I6B bonds were issued in the amount of $ ,000,000 and are payable over 
10 years, maturing on June 1, 2026. These bonds carry an interest rate of 6.5%. Finally, the Series 
2016C bonds were issued in the amount of S500.000 and are payable over 10 years. inaturing on 
June 1, 2026. These bonds carry an interest rate of 2.5%. All three series are to be funded and 
secured by the proceeds of a one-half percent sales tax. Series 201 6A and 20I6B are also secured 
by land purchased for use as a sports complex 

On Apnl 16, 2018, the Town issued $2.000,000 Series 2018A Revenue Bonds. The bonds are 
payable over 25 years and carry an mterest rate of 5.0%. These honds were refunded and 
subsequent reissued at 51.936.000 on April 14, 2021 as Series 2021 Revenue Refunding Bonds. 
Interest rate is yanable but will not exceed 5%. Initial interest rate is S3.25% 

Sales tax bond principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows: 

Year EndinL, 
December 31, 

 

Principal 
Payments 

 

Principal 
Interest and 

Payments Interest 
2022 

 

354,092 

 

272.064 S ()26,156 
70'3 

 

367,525 

 

256,640 624.165 
2024 

 

386,073 

 

240,453 626,526 
70'5 

 

429,737 

 

223,4-19 653,186 
7016 

 

448.522 

 

198,729 647,251 
20/7-'031 

 

2,418,900 

 

905,968 3.324.868 
2032-2036 

 

'530,145 

 

271,798 2.801.943 
2037-2041 

    

2042-2043 

    

Total .$ 6.934,994 .$ 2,369,101 $ 9.304.095 

The Town has the following enterprise fund long-term obligations: 

The 2011 Series Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Sewer Revenue Bonds were issued 
on May 9, 2011, in the amount of $696,000. These honds are payable over 2() years with interest at 
the rate of 45% per annum. 

The 2013 Series DEQ Taxahle Sales Tax Bonds were issued AuL,ust 28, 2013, in the amount of 
$350,000. These bonds are payable over 20 years at an interest rate of 0.45% per annum. 
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Note 5 - Long- Fenn Debt (continued) 

The 2013 Series Revemie Refunding Bonds were issued on September 24, 2013, in the amount 
of $2,710,000 with an average interest rate ranging from 2.00%-4.75% per annum payahle 
over 15 years. The net proceeds from the issuance of the bonds were used to purchase 
government securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trustwith an escrow agent to 
provide debt service until the bonds are called. The advance refund met the requirement of an 
in-substance debt defeasance, and the defeased portion of the bonds was removed from the 
Town's tinancial statements. 

The Series 2014 Wastewater and Utilities Revenue Bonds were issued on August 13, 2014 in 
the amount of $600,000. These honds are being serviced by Marion State Bank and Cross 
Keys Bank wherehy each bank is servicing 5300,000 with an interest rate of 5.00% per annum 
payable over 20 years. 

On April 27, 2017, the Town issued $4,000,000, in the aggregate, of Utility Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017 in two separate series; A and B. The Series 2017A bonds were issued in the 
arnount of $3.500.000 and are payable over 20 years, maturing on December 1, 2036. These 
bonds carry an interest rate of 3.11%. The Series 2017B taxable bonds were issued in the 
amount of $500,000 and are payahle over 10 vears, maturing on December 1, 2026. These 
bonds carry an interest rate of 1.55%. 

On September 28, 2018, the Town issued $1,845,000, in the aggregate, of Sewer System Revenue 
Refiinding Bonds, Series 2019. The bonds are payable over 2() years, maturing on December 
1, 2038. These honds carry an interest rate of 4.85%. 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Debt eontmuk:d) 

The following is a summary of long-term bonded indebtedness for the year ended December 
31, 2021: 

Revenue 
Bonds 

Issue 
Date 

Original 
Borrowing 

Interest 
Rates to 
Maturity 

Interest to 
Maturity 

Final 
Maturity 

Outstanding 
12 31 2021 

Series 2011 

      

DEQ Sewer 05/09'11 5696.000 0.45% $ 8,203 06;01 31 $373,585 
Series 2013 

      

DEQ Taxable 08:28 .B 5350,000 0.45% 6,493 12.01 i33 208,717 
Series 2013 

      

Refunding 

      

Revenue 

  

2.00% - 

   

Bonds 09:1913 $2,710,000 4.75% 242,901 06'01'28 1,720,000 
Series 2014 

      

Wastewater 081314 $300,000 

 

99,500 1001:34 17'5,075 
Series 2014 

      

Wastewater 08:1314 5300.000 5.00% 99,500 09.01i34 205,000 
Series 2017 

      

Wastewater 0427.17 S4.000,000 3.11% 936,856 1/ 01 36 3,534,900 
Series 2018 

  

2.10% phis 

   

Sewer 

  

US Treasury 

   

Refunding 09/28'18 $1,845.000 Yield 940,173 12.01 38 1,775,000 

Total 

   

52.333.626 

 

$8,042,277 

Bond principal and interest are due in total, to maturity, as follows: 

Year Ending Principal Interest 

Decemher 31, Payments Payments 

Principal 

and 

Interest 
?i1?1 $ 533,000 $ 160,875 793,875 

1 013 559,000 264,579 813,579 

2024 570,000 246,450 816,450 

2025 581,000 227,190 808,190 

2026 611,000 206,735 817,735 

2027-'031 2,433,000 763,451 3,196,451 

2032-2036 2,429,001) 354,469 2,783,469 

2037-2038 326,277 9,877 336,154 

Total S 8,042 277 $ 2,333.626 S 10,375,903 
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Note 5 - Long-Tertn Debt (eontinuk:cl) 

The loan agreements provide for the establishment of the following bank accounts. 

1. Bond and Interest Redemption Fund • Sinking Fund - to provide for the 
accumulation dmonies for the purpose of paying principal and interest. The 
Senes 2011 DEQ Revenue Bonds require the establishment of a "Sewer 
Revenue Bond Debt ServiceFund" whereby monthly transfers will be made into 
the account on or before the 20th  day of each month of each year, a sum equal to 
one-sixth (1 661) of the interest fallingdue on the next interest payment date and 
one-twelfth ( 1;1261) of the principal falling due on the nex t principal payment date. 
As of December 31, 2021. the balance in the Series 2011 DEQ was $0. which was 
underfunded. 

The agreement for the 2013 DEQ Bonds states that funds must he transferred 
fromthe Sales Tax Fund to the Sinking Fund, monthly in advance On or before the 
20111 day of each month of each year. a sum equal to the pro-rata amount of interest 
falling dueon the bonds and any additional panty bonds on the next interest 
payment date andthe pro-rata amount of the principal falling due on the bonds and 
any additional parity bonds on the next principal date. together with such 
additional proportionate sum asmay be required to pay said principal and interest 
as the same respectively come due.As of December 31, 2021. the balance in 
the Series 2013 DEQ was $1,214, which was underfunded. 

The 2013 Refianding Bonds are subject to mandatory Sinking Fund redemption 
priorto maturitv, including interest accnied to the redemption date on an annual 
basis commencing June 1, 2014. and continuing each June 1 thereafter until 
matunty. For the year 2014, the Town will be required to haw $15.000 
deposited into the Sinking Fund, and in subsequent years. the deposited 
ainount increases to $110,000. As of December 31. 2021, the balance in the 
account was $0, which was underfunded. 

The agreement for the 2014 Wastewater and Utilities Revenue Bonds 
requires the establishment of a "Wastewater and Utilities Revenue Bonds, 
Series (2014) Sinking Fund," whereby monthly deposits shall be made into the 
account on or befiire the 20th day of each month (commencing the first 206' day 
of the month following delivery of the bonds). a sum equal to one-sixth (11661) 
of the interest falling due on the next interest payment date and a sum equal 
to one-twelfth (11126`) of the principal falling due on the next principal payment 
date. As of December 31. 2021. the balance in the account was $0, which was 
underfunded. 

Revenue Bond Reserve Fund - to provide for the accumulation of monies 
for the purpose of paying principal and interest on notes which would 
otherwise be in default. 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Debt (contmued) 

The agreement for the Series 2011 DEQ Bonds provides that at least 20% 
of the reserve fund requirement must be deposited into the reserve fund each 
bond year so that the reserve fund is fully funded no later than five years after 
the delivery date. As of December 31. 2021, the balance in the fund totaled 
S21.439. 

The agreement for the Series 2013 DEQ Bonds provides that at least 25% 
of the amount required to be paid into the sinking fund must be deposited into 
the reserve fund on or before the 20th day of each month of each year until such 
time as there has been accumulated therein a sum equal to the reserve fund 
requirernent. As of December 31. 2021, the balance in the account was 
S44,381. 

3 Depreciation and Contingency Fund - to provide for repairs and improvements 
to the sewer system, with approval of the lender 

The agreement for the 2011 DEQ Bonds provides that, on or before the 20'h 
day of each month of each year, a sum equal to tive (5%) of the preceding 
month's Net Revenues as provided in the agreement for the preceding month 
shall be transferred to this account, provided that such sum is available provision 
is made. Payrnents in this fund shall continue until such time as $50,000 has 
accumulated in this fund, whereby such payments may cease. and need be 
resumed only if the total arnount of money on deposit is reduced below 
550.000. This fund had an ending balance of $445 at December 31, 2021. 

Note 6 - Ad-valorem Taxes 

The Town considers ad valorem taxes receivahle at December 31st and recognizes income in the 
year of assessment. For the year ended December 31. 2021. taxes of 9.18 mills were levied on 
properties with assessed valuations totaling $23,303,727 and were not dedicated to any particular 
purpose The total taxes originally levied were S213,929 at December 31, 2021. 

The property tax calendar is as follows: 
Assessment date 
Levy date 
Date taxes are due 
Lien date 

January 1, 2021 
November 15, 2021 
December 31, 2021 
January 1, 2022 

The Ouachita Parish Tax Assessor estahlishes the assessed values each year on a uniform hasis at 
the following ratios to fair market value. 

10% Land 15% Machinery 
10% Residential improvements 15% Commercial improvements 
15% Industrial improvements (excluding land) 25°.•;. Public service property 
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Note 7 - On-Behalf Payments 

Certain Town employees in the Police Department receive supplemental pay from the state of 
Louisiana In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24 "Accounting and Financial ReportingPr 
certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance, -  the Town has recorded revenues and 
expenditures for these payments in the General Fund in the amounts of S16,817 during the year 
ended December 31, 2021 

Note 8 - Interfund Receis able. and Payables 

There was one due to.from of $96.145 between the General Fund and Road Construction and 
Maintenance Fund at December 31. 2021, which occurred due to sales tax collections being 
deposited into General Fund but due to Road and Construction. 

Note 9 - Interfund Transfers 

The following transfers were made between the various funds of the Town during 2021: 

Transfers In 

Onvernmental Funds 

  

Road 
Construction 

and Sports 

   

Ciencral Maintenance Complex Enteiprise Total 

Transfers Out 

     

Governmental Funds 

     

Major Funds 

     

General Fund 

  

S203.961 S 70.724 $ 274.685 
Economic 

     

Devdopment District 62.417 

   

61417 

Recreation Sales Tax 

  

35,45' 

 

35.45/ 

Sports Tax 

     

Enterprise 

     

Sports Complex 

Total 

     

S 62.417 

 

5239.413 S 70,7/4 S 37-'.554 

These transfers resulted from transactions for goods and services among fund.s and from financing 
of capital project costs by other funds. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Note 10 - Retirement Plan 

During 2015, the Town began a defined-contribution plan for all full-time employees. The Town 
contributes up to 3% of salaries into a Savings Incentive Match Plan for Employees of Small 
Employers Individual Retirement Account (SIMPLE IRA) Plan. All contributions made by the 
Town are fully vested and non-thrfenable. The maximum contribution to the plan is the lesser of 
100% of earned income up to the contnbution limit for each calendar year. Employees are 
immediately eligihle to participate upon employment with the Town. During 2021, the Town 
contributed S3,074 into this retirement plan. 

Note 11 - Risk Financing Activities 

The Town is a participating member in the Louisiana Risk Management Agency's Group Self-
Insurance Fund for Municipal Liability Risk Sharing and Group Se1t=lnsurance Fund for 
Workmen's compensation and Employer Liability (the Agency). The Agency functions as a Public 
Entity Risk Pool formed to pool the risk of public liability exposure to its members. The Town 
insures its law enforcement officers' comprehensn e liability and errors and omissions risk through 
its participation in the Agency pools. The coverage provided by the pools is subject to S1,000 
deductibles for certain coverages and provides coverages up to $500,000 for each type of insured 
risk. Premiurns for coverage are retroactively rated hased on experience and premiums are 
calculated based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the pool participants. 

Note 12 - Litigation and Claims 

Risk Management handles all defense for the Town. The Town has a pending lawsuit involving 
a lease purchase agreement. The Town believes it will be successful in its defense of the lawsuit 
and the results will not have a niaterial effect on the Town's tinancial position. 

Note 13 - Baseball Park Lease 

The Town entered into a lease with 2 Seam Sports LLC to oversee the operation of the sports 
complex. The lease commenced on Apnl I, 2021 and runs for three vears. The Lessor is paying 
in monthly installments of S4,167. Total amounts due are 550,000 for hoth 2022 and 2023 and 
512,500 for 2024. There is one option to renew for an additional three years, which was 
exercised in 2024. 

Note 14 - Elevated Tower Agreement 

The Town entered into an agreement with Greater Ouachita Water for use of water mains, 
elevated tank and pumping station. The agreement commenced on April 28, 2020 and runs for 
until April 12, 2047. The agreement calls for monthly payments to the Town of $5,000 for we 
of the noted itenis. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
F()R THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2921  

Note 15 - Ballpark Lighting Lease 

On September 18, 2017, the Town entered into a lease agreement fbr a ballpark lighting system. 

The present value of the lease payments was recorded as a lease asset, and a corresponding lease 
liahility was also recorded. The lease asset was recorded at $840,000 with accumulated 
amortization of $357.000 as of December 31, 2021. 

Future minimum lease payments 

Year Ended 

are as follows. 

Principal Interest 
2077 $81.436 $24,884 
2023 85,391 20.929 
70'4 89,537 16,783 
2025 93,885 12,435 
)076 98.445 7,876 
2027 103,224 3,096 

Note 16 - Restricted Fund Balances (FFS Level Only) 

The following Governmental Fund's fund halance is leallv restricted for the follo« ine purposes: 
Road maintenance ($268,241). 

The following Governmental Fund's fund balance is legally restricted for the following purposes. 
Sales tax sports complex ($56,056). 

The following Governmental Fund's fund balance is legally restricted for the following purposes: 
Economic Development ($179,36(i). 

Note 17 - Deficit Net Position 

At December 31. 2021. the business-type activities of the Town reported an unrestricted net 
position deficit of $3,650,471. 

In prior years. debt was issued related to sewerage system and sports complex. These assets were 
transferred to the Sports Complex dunng 2018, resulting in a large deficit for that year and an 
overall laree deficit in unrestricted net position. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2921  

Note 18 - Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 30, 2024. the date that the financial 
statements were availahle to be issued. Subsequent events of note include the buikhng of new 
batting fircility at the sports complex, rehab of the power lift station. extended Lockwood Drive 
and recently received a grant for upcoming sewer system work. All subsequent events 
determined to be relevant and material to the financial statements have been appropriately 
recorded or disclosed. 

Note 19 - Prior Period Adjustments 

Goxernment-Wide Financials Statements 

GASB Statement No. 87 on leases became effective for the tiscal years beginning afier June 15'. 
2021. but the Town has elected to implement the standard early. The new standard requires that 
lessees record a lease liabihty and intangible asset representing the lessee's nght to use the leased 
asset. The leased asset is amortized over the course of the lease, and payments made on the lease 
are recorded against the corresponding liability and interest. The Town has a long-term lease of 
their baseball complex lighting system, and the standard requires retroactive application. 

The restatement of the beginning of the year net assets is as follows: 

Net Position as pre‘iously stated December 31, 2020 

Net Change of Net Position due to changes 
from Adoption of GASB 87 

Net Assets as restated January 1, 202 l 

Business-Type Actives — Enterprise Fund 

$ 6.318.756 

( 62.5831 

$ 6,256,173  

During the course of the audit, it was discovered that long-term balances were not correct on the 
prior year financial statements. They were overstated by $35.837. Also. during the audit, it was 
discovered that a note receivable was incorrectly recorded on the financial statements in the amount 
of $45,673. Between the two of these, a net adjustment of $40,163 was made to the beginning net 
position. 

Note 20 - Fiscal Administration 

The Town was placed under fiscal administration by the 4111  Judicial District Court for the Parish 
of Ouachita on August 6, 2019, as a result of being unable to pay certain deht obligations coming 
due. The Town was released from fiscal administration during the first half of 2021. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

GENERAL FUND 
BUI)GETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE ((GAAP BASIS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) DECEMBER 31, 2021  

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

 

$ 377,387 $ 756,090 $ 378,703 

Resources 

    

Ad Valorem Taxes 175,000 213,9/8 209,746 (4,1)?2) 
Sales and Other Taxes 655,000 1,000,945 1,169,522 168,577 
Charees for Services 3,36() 2,400 2,100 (300) 
Licenses and Permits 129,334 148,876 151,691 2,815 
Intergovernmental 17,756 1,183 18,287 17,104 
Fees 63,916 144,035 

 

(144,035) 
Fines and Forfeitures 116,022 117,902 120,846 2,944 
Use of Money and Property 5,480 2,573 2,884 311 
Contributions 

 

1,483 

 

(1,483) 
Miscellaneous 187,998 6,067 4,450 (1,617) 
Tramfers From Other Funds 

  

62,417 62,417 
Total Resources 1,353,866 1,639,392 1,741,943 102,551 

Amounts available for appropriations 1,353,866 2,016,779 2,498,033 481,254 

Charges to appropriations 

    

Current 

    

General eovernment 458,025 548,800 483,046 65,754 
Public Safety 176,972 183,246 207,076 ( 23,830) 
Public Works 10,58/ 6,580 6,264 316 
Capital Outlay 2,350 24,800 24,799 1 
Debt Service 37(),7I6 /73,000 199,492 73,508 

Transfers To Other Funds 269,475 259,231 274,685 (15_454) 
Total Charges to appropriations 1,288_620 1295,657 1,195.362 100295 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

    

END OF YEAR $ 65,246 $ 721,122 $ 1,302,671 $ 581,549 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON 
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

SPECIAL REVENUES - ROAD CONSTRUCTION AND NIA1NTENANCE FUND  
STATENIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI) CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET ((::AAP) AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

Original 
Budget 

Amended 
Budget 

Actual 
Year 

to Date 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

 

$ 160,845 $ 56.725 $ (104.120) 

Resources 

    

Sales and Other Taxes 217,740 345,000 338.544 ((,.-156) 
Licenses and Pennits 350 3,500 3,850 150 
Use of Money and Property 630 5 1/ 7 

M i scel laneous Income 690 

   

Transfers In 
Total Revenues 

    

219.410 348,505 342.406 (6,099) 

Amounts available for appropriation,' 219,410 509,350 399.131 (110.219) 

Charges to Appropriations 

    

Public Works 74,590 84,240 77.722 6.518 

Capital Chitlay 

    

Debt Service 120,70(1 51,375 53,168 (1,793) 
Transfers Out 

Total Charges to appropriations 

    

195,290 135.615 130.890 4.725 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

    

END OF YEAR $ 24,120 $ 373.735 $ 268,241 $ (105.494) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

SPECIAL REVENUES - RECREATION SALES TAX FUND  
STATENIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI) CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31, 2021  

 

Original 
Budget 

Amended 
Budget 

Actual 
Year 

to Date 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

    

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

 

$ (24.990) $ 16.678 S 41,668 

Resources 

    

Sales and Other Taxes 217,740 325.000 338.710 13,71(1 
Use of Money and Property 

  

10 lcl 
Total Revenues 217,740 325,000 338,710 13.720 

Amounts available for appropriations 217.740 300.010 355.398 

 

Charges to Appropriations 

    

General Government 

  

25 

 

Debt Service - Principal 217,724 264,000 63,300 200,700 
Debt Service - Interest 

  

200,565 (20(1,565) 

Transfers Out 

 

35,990 35,45') 538 

Total Charges to appropriations 217,724 1 99.990 299,342 673 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

    

END OF YEAR 16 $ 20 S 56,056 S 56.016 

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

SPECIAL REVENUES - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FUND  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET GAAP A,ND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

Original 
Budget 

Amended 
Budget 

Actual 
Year 

to Date 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

BEGINNING OF YEAR $ $ 68.907 $ 62,417 $ (6.490) 

Resources 
Sales and Other Taxes 100,000 313.095 343.492 30.397 

Amounts available for appropriations /00,000 3s").001 405,9(l9 "):;;.907 

Charges to Appropriations 

    

Deht Service - Principannterest 

 

164.253 164,126 127 
Transfers Out 

  

61417 (62.417) 
Total Charges to appropriations 

 

164.'53 226,543 (62,290) 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

    

END OF YEAR $ 200,000 $ 217,749 $ 179,366 $ 86.197 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this tinancial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON  
STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA  

ARPA  
STATENIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENIBER 31, 2021  

Variance With 
Actual Final Budget 

Oriminal Amended Year Positive 
Budget Budget to Date (Negative) 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Resuurces 

   

Federal Grant 542,902 541.901 

 

Amounts available for appropriations 542,902 542.902 

 

Charges to Appropriations 

   

Debt Service - Principal:Interest 

   

Transfes Out 

   

Total Charges to appropriations 

   

BUDGETARY FITND BALANCE 

   

END OF YEAR - $ 542,902 $ 541,901 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statements. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON, LOi1ISI.aNA  
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS 
AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD  

DECEMBER 31, 2021  

Agency Head 
Mayor 

Caesar Valazquez   

Salary S 66.777 

Travel 159 
Meals 148 

Total S 67.284 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO COUNCIL MEMBERS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

The schedule of compensation paid to board of aldermen is presented in compliance with House Concurrent 
Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the board of aldermen is 

included in the general government expenditures of the General Fund. The hoard of adlermen received a per 
diem of $250 per month with the exception of the Mayor Pro Tempore, who received a per diem of $350 per 
month In addition. they receive a per dietn of $1 per month for each month they attend a special meeting. 

Ronald A Hil1 4.100 

Billy Clarkson 1,75(1 

Brian T McCarthy 3,000 

Donald L Vocker 75() 
Matt Talhert 3,000 

Zachary D Howse 3,000 

 

15,700 
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Town of Sterlinglon  

Slerlington, I,ouisiana  

Collectinf:fl)itibur~int; Entity Schedule  

As Required Bv Act 87 of 2020 Regular I.egis.lattive Session 

For the Year Ended I)eretnber 31. 2021  

('ash Basis Presentation 

Beginnmg Balance of Amounts Collected t t e. cash on hand) 

First Six Second Six 

Month Penod Nlonth Period 

Ended Ended 

6.'30.'2021 12.31:2021 

S0 S0 

Add Collections 

irninal Conn CostsTees 

Total 

Less Disbuisemeins To Governments A: Nonprofits 

37.2O 26.033 
37.209 '6.033 

  

('rime Stoppers of Ouachita Cninina I Fines - Othei 910 782 

Treasurer, State of Louisiana - CM1S. Cninival Fines - ()cher 27/ 469 

Louisiana Conirnission in Law Enforcement. Criminal Fines - 

  

Other 449 2401 

Department of Health and Human Services. Traumatic Health 

mid Spinal Cord Injury Trust FuntL Crimmid Fines - Other 450 495 

Louisiana Supinient Court. Cnnunal Fines - Other 114 196 

Fourth Disuict Pubhc Defendei Office. Criminal Fines - Other 2.280 3110 

Less: Amounts Retained bv Colkcting Agency 

Amounts Self Disbuised tor Cruninal Fines - Other 32329 3so 

Less: Disbursements to lndwiduals,3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 

OllierDistuirsemenis to Int lividua ls n 0 

Torii] DisbuisemeinsiRetantage 3 -  .209 26.03.3 

Torii] Enclitic Balame uf Amomits Collected but not Disbursed:Retained (i.e. Lash on hantl) )u S0 

See independent auditors' report. 
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Addressi 
P. 0, Box 2474 
West Monroe, LA 71294-2474 

CAMERON, lims & COM:PANY 
(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

Certified Public Accountants 
104 Regency Place 

West Monroe, Louisiana 71291 
Phone (318) 323-1717 

Fax (318) 322-5121 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREFOR1VIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Sterlington 
Sterlington, Louisiana: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, of 
the Town of Sterlington, Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control , described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as item 2021-001, that we consider to be 
material weakness. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Sterlington 
Sterlington, Louisiana 
Page 2 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed three instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2021-001, 2021-002 and 2021-003. 

Town of Sterlington's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town of 
Sterlington's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. Town of Sterlington's response was not subjected to the other auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government. Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

West Monroe, Louisiana 
September 30, 2024 
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TONN N OF STERLINGTON. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND UESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE E AR ENDED DEC EMBER 31, 2021  

SUNIMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1 The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic government financial 
statements of the Town of Sterlington, Louisiana. 

2. One material weakness was disclosed relating to the audit of the basic financial statements. 

3 Three instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Sterlington, 
Louisiana, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government :-ludrring 
Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No federal single audit was required under the Uniform Guidance relating to the financial 
statements of the Town of Sterlington, Louisiana. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - NWOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 
Section III — Findings or questioned costs for Federal awards, including those specified by 
Unifortn Guidance: 

This section is not applicable. 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2021-0111 Late Filing of Audit Report 

Criteria: 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 requires timely filing of annual reports withm six months after the end 
of the fiscal year. 

Condition: 
The Town did not timely file its mutual reports for the year ending December 31, 2021. 

Cause: 
The Town is behind on this audit due to delays in previous audits. 

Effect: 
The Town was not in compliance with state statute. 

Recommendation: 
Recommended gettinE4 caught up on all past due audits. so audits can he completed on time. 

Management's Response:  
The new administration has prioritized getting the audits current. Audits should be current by the end of 
Octoher. 
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TOWN OF STERLINGTON, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021  

2021-0112 Debt Col euant Non-Compliance 

Criteria: 
Per bond agreements, the Town was to contribute hinds to cash accounts in order to cover reserve and 
sinking fund requirements. 

Condition: 
The Town has not fully funded reserve and sinking funds per bonding agreements 

Cause: 
The Town were unahle to pay prior debt obligations and as result was placed on fiscal administration and 
their sales tax collections were ordered into a forbearance agreement. The agreement called for sales tax 
collections to be delivered to an outside agency who would collect funds sufficient to insure timely 
payments and then remit the remaining amounts to the Town. 

Effect: 
The Town was not in compliance with bonding agreements. 

Recommendation: 
Recommended funding the reserve and sinking funds in accordance with bonding agreements. 

Management's Response:  
The current administration fully funded the resene and sinking fund accounts per the bond ordinances as 
of later 2023. 

2021-0113 Untimely Court Fine Remittances 

Criteria: 
The Town collects court costs that should be distributed to appropriate agencies in a timely manner. 

Comlition: 
The Town did not tnnelv remit collected court costs. 

Cause: 
The amounts due to agencies from court tines were never updated to retlect the new amounts. 

Effect: 
The Town was not in compliance with its responsibility as a collecting agent to distribute costs due to 
other agencies in a timely manner. 

Recommendation: 
Recommended distributing appropriate court costs in the first week of the month for previous months 
collections. 

Management's Response:  
The current Town Clerk has renutted all late court costs to the respective agencies and has heen current 
during the administration currently in office. 
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TOWN OF STERL[NGTON. LOUISIANA  
SUALAIARY S( HEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AM) QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC-EMBER 31, 2021  

2020-1 Late Filing of Audit Report 

C-ondition: 
The Town did not timely file its. annual reports for the year ending December 31, 2020. 

Recommendation: 
Recommended etting cauuht up on all past due audits so that audits ean be completed on time. 

( .urrent Status:  
Finding was repeated as 2021-001. 

2020-2 Town Placed Under Fiscal Administration 

Condition: 
The Town was place on fiscal administration as of August 6, 2019, as a result of being unable to pay 
certain debt obligations coining due. 

Recommendation: 
Continue to follow guidance and direction of the Fiscal Administrator. 

('urrent Status: 
The Town was released from Fiscal administration during the 2021. 

2020-3 Debt Covenant Non-Compliance 

Comlition: 
The Town has not Wily funded reserve and sinking funds per bonding agreements. 

Recommendation: 
Recommended fundina the reserve and sinking funds in accordance with bonding aureements . 

(urrent Status:  
Finding was repeated as /0'1-00). 

2020-4 Insurance Claim 

Condition: 
The Town's former mayor tiled a false property insurance claim for $689. 

Recommendation: 
The Tow n should only tile legitimate claims to insurance. 

Current Status:  
The Town reimbursed the insurance company in full. 
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TONN N OF STERLINGTON. LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND UESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE E AR ENDED DECENIBER 31. 2021  

2020-5 Budgetary Nun-Compliance 

Condition: 
The Town's budgets for 2020 were not approved timely. 

Recommendation: 
The Town should make that all original and amended budgets be tiled in accordance with the Louisiana 
Local Government Budget Act. 

Current Status:  
The finding has been cleared. 
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